
 
CITY OF HILLSBORO 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

Agenda – Special Meeting - Tuesday, April 16, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. 
Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81338906250 
 

A.  Meeting Called to Order 

B. Approval of Consent Agenda 

1. Vouchers totaling $139,734.52 

2. Minutes from the April 2, 2024 meeting 

C. Public Hearing for Ordinance 1390 establishing City of Hillsboro Flood Plain Management 

1. Public Hearing and discussion of Ordinance 1390 

2. Consideration of adopting Ordinance 1390  

D. Remarks from Mike King, Republican Candidate for Kansas House District 74  

E. Annual Department Head Report: Todd Helmer, Electric  

F. Public Comment 

G. Business Items 

1. Consideration of Municipal Policy 102 regarding Lightning Arrestors 

2. Consideration of Municipal Policy 103 regarding Vegetation Management 

3. Consideration of Municipal Policy 104 regarding Wildlife Protection 

H. Discussion Items 

1. Q1 Strategic Plan Update 

I. City Administrator’s Report 

J. Public Comments 

K. Council Comments 

L. Adjournment 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81338906250














































Hillsboro, Kansas 
April 2, 2024 
 
1. The City Council met in regular session via Zoom and in person on Tuesday, April 2, 2024, at 6:30pm with 
Mayor Lou Thurston and Council members Blake Beye, Brent Driggers, Byron McCarty, and Ronald Wilkins 
participating.  
 

Members Absent:  None. 
 
2. Others Participating:  Andrew Kovar, City Attorney; Matt Stiles, City Administrator; Danielle Bartel, City Clerk; 
Mike Morales, This N That Farms; Ken Olsen, Enterprise Fleet Management; Dale Dalke, Street Superintendent. 
 
3. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Lou Thurston called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 
 
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

VOUCHERS in the amount of $118,836.80. 

MINUTES for the regular council meeting dated March 19, 2024.  

CDBG & HEAL VOUCHERS totaling $13,946.31. 

BOARD APPOINTMENT of Kevin Brandt to a two-year term on the Planning Commission.  

Council member Wilkins motioned to approve the consent agenda. Council member McCarty seconded. Motion 
carried.   
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT:  None. 
 
6. BUSINESS ITEMS: 
 

CONSIDERATION OF ENTERPRISE FLEET MANAGEMENT PROPOSAL:  Council member Beye recused himself 
from the conversation. Administrator Stiles provided an update regarding the fleet management proposal and 
his meetings with Hillsboro Ford and Midway Motors. He shared the local dealerships will receive the delivery 
fee and will provide service and warranty work on the new vehicles.  
 

Council member McCarty motioned to approve the master agreement and maintenance agreement with all 
proposed addendums with Enterprise Fleet Management. Council member Wilkins seconded. Motion carried.  
 
THIS N THAT FARMS REQUEST FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE:  Administrator Stiles introduced 
Mike Morales of This N That Farms, who will be moving his business into the Hillsboro Business Park. Morales 
has requested economic development assistance to install a culvert at the corner of Commerce and Santa Fe. 
Stiles noted the expense has been paid by This N That Farms and the City would provide reimbursement from 
the Industrial Fund.    
 

Council member McCarty motioned to approve the expenditure of $4,956.30 to This N That Farms for the 
reimbursement of expenses related to installing the culvert as presented. Council member Driggers seconded. 
Motion carried. 
 

Morales shared his appreciation for the city council and the local community for their support.  
 
FUNBRELLA PURCHASE FOR POOL:  Administrator Stiles shared about wind damage to the funbrellas at the 
Delores Dalke Family Aquatic Center. He described the proposed funbrellas which are fixed and withstand a 
higher wind speed than the ones original to the pool. Stiles noted the Local Sales Tax Fund will be used for the 
purchase.  
 

Council member McCarty motioned to approve the purchase of two funbrellas for the pool at a cost of $11,054 
plus freight from Anchor Industries. Council member Beye seconded. Motion carried. 
 
VOGTS CRUSHING CONCRETE BID:  Administrator Stiles shared the city has a large pile of rubble to be crushed 
which will primarily be used for upcoming street projects. Staff recommends moving forward with Vogt’s 
Crushing.  
 
Council member Wilkins motioned to approve the bid from Vogts Crushing at a cost of $68,100 to crush 
concrete. Council member Beye seconded. Motion carried.  
 
FORD INVOICES:  Administrator Stiles reviewed the Hillsboro Ford invoices. Council member McCarty motioned 
to approve the Hillsboro Ford invoices for payment in the amount of $335.20. Council member Wilkins 
seconded. Council member Beye abstained. Motion carried.   



 
9. LAND BANK MEETING:  Council recessed the regular City Council meeting to enter a Land Bank Meeting at 
6:52pm. The regular City Council meeting resumed at 6:54pm.  
 
10. CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:  Administrator Stiles reported on the following: 

 Gorges Dairy 
 

Council member Driggers left the meeting at 6:56pm.  
 

 Mennonite Housing Meeting 

 Building Bridges Program 

 Fire Station Appropriation Request 

 Hospital Zoning Request 

 Parks & Recreation Improvements 

 City-Wide Cleanup April 22-24 

 Golf Clubhouse Renovations 

 Hett Construction at Ash & Grand  

 Shelden Architecture 
 
11. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None.  
 
12. COUNCIL COMMENTS:  Council McCarty inquired about cold patching Cedar Street from Grand Avenue to 
Third Street. Council member Beye inquired about a timeline for flooring at Dale’s to be replaced. Administrator 
Stiles stated materials have been ordered.  
 
13. ADJOURNMENT:  Council meeting adjourned at 7:06pm. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  _______________________________________  
   LOUIS THURSTON, MAYOR 
 
 
 _______________________________________  
  DANIELLE BARTEL, CITY CLERK  



Page 1 of 1 

 

Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: April 16, 2024 

Re: Public Hearing for FEMA Floodplain Map Adoption 

Background: Ordinance 1390 has been approved by the Chief Engineer for the Division of Water 
Resources for KDA. The text of the ordinance is identical to the current flood plain management 
ordinance found in Chapter 16, Article 6, aside from the references to the new flood maps. The 
public hearing and adoption of this ordinance is required to be included in the floodplain 
management program. Participation in the floodplain management program allows citizens to 
access affordable flood insurance where required and allows the city to govern how building can 
occur in the floodplain. The city had no role in the development of the floodplain maps other than 
the opportunity to provide data and comment to FEMA. 

Financial Impact: There is no direct financial impact on the city. Participation in the floodplain 
management program allows citizens to access flood insurance programs.  

Recommendation: The council must hold a public hearing on the purposed change. Proper 
notification of that hearing was published on March 22, 2024, on the city’s website. Since the 
floodplain management ordinance has been approved by the Chief Engineer there is no 
opportunity to alter the ordinance; it is either adopted or denied. Barring strong public resistance to 
the floodplain management program, staff would recommend adoption of Ordinance 1390. 





1390

(Ordinance published at www.cityofhillsboro.net on April 19, 2024)

Repealing and Replacing Chapter 16, Article 6 of the Code of the City of Hillsboro, Kansas





























[ REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK ]















Danielle Bartel, City Clerk

Lou Thurston, Mayor

04-16-2024

04-16-2024

www.cityofhillsboro.net

16th April



Page 1 of 1 

 

Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: April 16, 2024 

Re: Municipal Policies Related to Electric Infrastructure 

Background: Three new policies related to electrical infrastructure management are attached. 
Each of these policies is prescribed by the American Public Power Association (APPA) Reliable 
Public Power Provider (RP3) designation that the city is pursuing with assistance from KPP 
Energy. The RP3 program is based on industry-recognized leading practices in reliability, safety, 
workforce development, and system improvement. An RP3 designation is a sign of a utility's 
dedication to operating an efficient, safe, and reliable distribution system. 

Municipal Policy 102 pertains to lightning arrestors. A lightning arrestor is a device put on power 
infrastructure that effectively works as an air gap to handle surges in voltage from lighting by 
discharging the power to the ground rather than through electrical equipment. The policy mandates 
lightning arrestors in certain locations on new infrastructure. It also encourages additional lightning 
arrestors in existing areas as infrastructure is replaced. 

Municipal Policy 103 deals with vegetation management. Primarily, vegetation management is 
trimming trees. This is one area where we often irritate customers. We try to be judicious with 
trimming, but we are also aggressive in some areas because of how long we go between 
trimmings. It’s sometimes difficult to balance customer happiness with the needs of the utility. This 
policy gives guidance on those procedures and provides for customer service instruction as well. 

Municipal Policy 104 is about wildlife protection, particularly birds. The policy pertains to new 
infrastructure and major maintenance. The intention is to avoid disrupting birds and migration 
patterns. We typically don’t see these issues; we deal more with squirrels than birds. In other parts 
of the country there are major issues with birds nesting on top of large utility poles. Our 
circumstances are different, but this policy provides a method to deal with birds in new areas. 

Financial Impact: There is no direct financial impact on the city. The RP3 designation is an 
investment in time more than financial assets.  

Recommendation: The proposed policies affect the electric utility and are important to the RP3 
designation. In total the city will need six policies; these will be the first three for consideration. 
Since they are municipal policies, the council could choose to act on all three at once or handle 
them individually. Staff is recommending adoption of all three policies.  



City of Hillsboro 

MUNICIPAL POLICY STATEMENT 

Policy No. 102 

Subject: Guidelines for the Installa�on of Lightning Arresters 

Effec�ve Date: April 16, 2024 

The City of Hillsboro hereby sets forth guidelines for the installa�on of lightning arresters within the City 
of Hillsboro’s infrastructure to protect equipment and ensure the reliable and uninterrupted supply of 
electricity to customers. Lightning arresters will be strategically installed in specified loca�ons to mi�gate 
the risks associated with lightning strikes. This policy applies to newly installed infrastructure as of the 
adop�on of this policy.  Exis�ng infrastructure will be brought up to standard as maintenance and 
replacement allows. 

 

Installa�on Loca�ons: 

1. Overhead Transformers: Lightning arresters are mandated on primary transformers, regardless of 
their voltage ra�ng. This includes both single-phase and three-phase transformers. The aim is to 
reduce the risk of damage from lightning strikes, thereby enhancing the safety and longevity of 
these cri�cal components. 

2. Pad Mount Transformers on Radial Runs: Installa�on of lightning arresters is required on the first 
and last pad mount transformer of each radial run, covering both single-phase and three-phase 
transformers. This strategy ensures the en�re run is protected against lightning-induced surges, 
preven�ng damage to transformers and associated infrastructure. 

3. Junc�on Boxes: All single-phase and three-phase junc�on boxes within the u�lity’s network should 
be equipped with lightning arresters. This encompasses distribu�on boxes across the system, 
providing protec�on against lightning-related electrical disturbances to maintain service 
con�nuity. 

Implementa�on Guidelines: 

1. The installa�on of lightning arresters shall be integrated into rou�ne maintenance schedules or as 
part of new construc�on projects, ensuring comprehensive coverage. 

2. Lightning arresters must meet industry standards and specifica�ons appropriate for the voltage 
ra�ng and system configura�on, ensuring their effec�veness and reliability. 

3. A record of all lightning arrester installa�ons, including loca�on, type, and installa�on date, must 
be maintained for accountability and future reference. 

4. Regular inspec�ons and maintenance are crucial to ascertain the proper func�oning of lightning 
arresters. Damaged or malfunc�oning units must be quickly addressed through replacement or 
repair. 

 



Review and Revision: 

The policy will undergo periodic reviews to assess its effec�veness and relevance, incorpora�ng input from 
relevant stakeholders and aligning with current best prac�ces and procedures. 

Compliance: 

All personnel involved in the installa�on, maintenance, and inspec�on of lightning arresters are obliged 
to comply with this policy. Non-compliance may lead to disciplinary ac�on to ensure adherence to these 
cri�cal safety measures.  

 

The Governing Body of the City of Hillsboro agreed by mo�on at the April 16, 2024 regular council 
mee�ng, to approve this policy statement. 

 

 

Approved: ____________________________________________ ______________ 

  Lou Thurston, Mayor     Date 



City of Hillsboro 

MUNICIPAL POLICY STATEMENT 

Policy No. 103 

Subject: Vegeta�on Management Policy 

Effec�ve Date: April 16, 2024 

The City of Hillsboro hereby establishes comprehensive guidelines and procedures for managing 
vegeta�on around electric u�lity infrastructure. Its primary goal is to minimize the risk of power outages, 
equipment damage, and safety hazards due to vegeta�on encroachment on power lines and associated 
equipment. This policy is applicable to all employees, contractors, vendors, and individuals engaged in 
vegeta�on management within the city. 

Objec�ves: 

1. Conduct regular vegeta�on management to prevent the encroachment of trees, shrubs, and other
vegeta�on on power lines, substa�ons, transformers, and other cri�cal equipment.

2. Priori�ze the safety of employees, contractors, and the public by iden�fying and mi�ga�ng
poten�al hazards posed by vegeta�on near electrical infrastructure.

3. Enhance the reliability and availability of electrical services by reducing the risk of tree-related
power outages and equipment damage.

4. Undertake vegeta�on management with a commitment to environmental sustainability and the
preserva�on of natural habitats whenever possible.

Prac�ces: 

1. Develop and periodically review a comprehensive plan to iden�fy high-risk areas, priori�ze tasks,
and allocate resources effec�vely.

2. Clear and maintain vegeta�on within designated rights-of-way according to industry best prac�ces
and regulatory requirements, ensuring sufficient clearance from power lines.

3. Perform selec�ve pruning and trimming to maintain safe clearance while minimizing impact on
aesthe�cs and tree health.

4. Iden�fy and address hazard trees that pose an imminent risk to electrical infrastructure due to
structural defects, disease, or other condi�ons.

5. Employ approved herbicides judiciously to control invasive vegeta�on and prevent regrowth, in
compliance with laws, regula�ons, and best prac�ces.

6. Establish effec�ve communica�on and collabora�on with local authori�es, environmental
agencies, landowners, and the community to ensure compliance, transparency, and community
involvement.

7. Maintain accurate records of vegeta�on management ac�vi�es, including assessments, work
orders, inspec�ons, and treatment records, for audi�ng and future planning.



Training and Educa�on:  

1. Ensure all personnel involved in vegeta�on management receive training on safety procedures, 
equipment opera�ons, environmental compliance, and relevant regula�ons. 

2. Provide ongoing training and educa�on to keep employees and contractors informed on new 
techniques, technologies, and best prac�ces. 

3. Provide customer service instruc�ons to ensure that employees and contractors interact with 
customers in an appropriate and effec�ve manner.  

Compliance and Audi�ng:  

1. Conduct regular audits and inspec�ons to ensure compliance with laws, regula�ons, industry 
standards, and internal policies. 

2. Inves�gate any devia�ons promptly and take correc�ve ac�ons as necessary. 

Policy Review: 

This policy shall be reviewed regularly or following significant organiza�onal, regulatory, or industry 
changes, to ensure it remains current and effec�ve. 

Policy Enforcement:  

Viola�ons of this policy may result in disciplinary ac�on, up to termina�on of employment or legal 
ac�on, depending on the severity of the breach and applicable laws. 

The Governing Body of the City of Hillsboro agreed by mo�on at the April 16, 2024 regular council 
mee�ng to approve this policy statement. 

 

 

Approved: ____________________________________________ ______________ 

  Lou Thurston, Mayor     Date 



City of Hillsboro 

MUNICIPAL POLICY STATEMENT 

Policy No. 104 

Subject: Wildlife Preserva�on Policy 

Effec�ve Date: April 16, 2024 

The City of Hillsboro is dedicated to reducing its impact on wildlife and fostering its protec�on throughout 
the lifecycle of its electric u�lity infrastructure. This policy underscores our commitment to wildlife habitat 
preserva�on, the protec�on of individual animals, and the promo�on of responsible environmental 
stewardship. 

Legal Compliance:  

We adhere strictly to all relevant local, na�onal, and interna�onal wildlife protec�on laws and regula�ons, 
encompassing habitat preserva�on, species conserva�on, and animal welfare. 

Environmental Impact Assessments:  

1. Before any new infrastructure projects or significant modifica�ons, the poten�al risks to wildlife 
and their habitats will be evaluated and assessed, taking into account protected species, migratory 
paths, breeding areas, and ecologically sensi�ve zones. In such cases, mi�ga�on strategies would 
be devised and executed to lessen any adverse effects. 

2. Recognizing the cri�cal need to preserve wildlife habitats, our opera�ons strive to limit 
encroachment into these areas. We engage with wildlife specialists and stakeholders to safeguard 
cri�cal habitats and foster biodiversity. 

Avian Protec�on: 

1. In acknowledgment of the risks posed to bird species, we implement measures to reduce bird 
collisions, electrocu�ons, and other hazards related to our infrastructure, including the adherence 
to recognized avian protec�on standards. 

Nes�ng and Breeding Season Protocols: 

1. Extra precau�ons are taken during nes�ng and breeding seasons to prevent disturbance to 
wildlife. Surveys are carried out to iden�fy and protect sensi�ve sites before star�ng any 
construc�on or maintenance work. 

Employee Training and Awareness:  

1. We provide targeted training and awareness ini�a�ves for all personnel involved in infrastructure 
installa�on and maintenance, covering wildlife protec�on policies, environmental assessment 
methods, species iden�fica�on, and impact minimiza�on prac�ces. 

 

 



Repor�ng and Incident Response: 

1. We encourage the repor�ng of wildlife incidents or risks associated with our opera�ons. In such 
cases, structured repor�ng and response measures are conducted to swi�ly mi�gate any nega�ve 
wildlife impacts. 

Con�nuous Improvement: 

1. Our commitment to enhancing wildlife protec�on is ongoing. We regularly review and update our 
policies and prac�ces based on incident analysis and the latest in conserva�on research to ensure 
con�nued advancement in environmental stewardship. 

 

The Governing Body of the City of Hillsboro agreed by mo�on at the April 16, 2024 regular council mee�ng, 
to approve this policy statement. 

 

 

Approved: __________________________________________________  _________________ 

  Lou Thurston, Mayor      Date 



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Childcare

TIER 1 GOAL: CHILDCARE

OBJECTIVES

STRATEGY START DATE
COMPLETION 

DATE
Create a community based steering committee to guide the 
creation of a community daycare facility 2020 COMPLETE
Investigate potential partnerships between USD 410, local 
churches, the City and other organizations to locate in a 
daycare facility 2020 COMPLETE

Study the feasibility of the daycare facility in the old hospital. 2021 COMPLETE
Develop the necessary public-private partnerships to access 
funding and make a workable business model. 2021 2022

UPDATES April 2024

UPDATES January 2024

UPDATES October 2023

Have childcare options that support positive childhood development and support parental 
employment

Ensure sufficient opportunities for anyone in need of childcare
Provide a safe and nurturing environment for children in the community
Improve school preparedness for school aged children

Bids for contractors will be released the first week of January and are due back by January 30. 
KDOC took longer than anticipated completing all the reviews before bidding. The Architect 
estimates up to a 12 month construction timeline, putting a potential opening in early 2025. 

Bids from the February were rejected and the project was rebid for an April 10 opening. The 
initial bids were significantly over the architect's estimates and there was only one bidder. When 
the new bids are awarded construction is anticipated to begin in mid-2024 with an opening in 
2025. 

The Environmental Review period for CDBG has passed and now we are waiting on approval 
from the state to release the funds. H4C anticipates starting the bidding process in November 
and hopefully having a contractor selected before December. Depending on contractor 
schedules the construction work should begin the first part of the 2024.

1 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Childcare

UPDATES June 2023

H4C has reached its fundraising goals! H4C has received a Childcare Accelerator Grant from the 
Kansas Childrens Cabinet Trust Fund for $855,216. Private donations of $1.1 million including a 
$600,000 private donation and $112,834 in other grants. The city received a $600,000 CDBG on 
behalf of H4C.  The total raised to date is $2,668,751.92, nearly 60% coming from sources 
outside the community.

H4C is in the design process with the architecture firm. The design and bidding process will begin 
once the project has received approval from CDBG administrators. There is a very specific 
process for bidding and construction that must be used for federal funds. The hope is to be 
operational by fall 2024. 

H4C is working on a community event to celebrate meeting the fundraising goals and celebrating 
the success of the community coming together to meet this need. There is also a donor gala 
being planned for when the center is completed.

2 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Housing

TIER 1 GOAL: HOUSING

OBJECTIVES

STRATEGY START DATE
COMPLETION 

DATE
Complete Housing Assessment Tool (HAT) to become eligible for 
housing related grants and establish a market. 2021 COMPLETE

Develop housing strategy for individuals markets identified by the HAT. 2021 COMPLETE
Implement tools not currently used by the city to housing development 
based on needs 2021 2021
Consider a city based program to control blight by improving the 
appearance of homes and businesses. 2022 Ongoing

Apply for grant funds for CDBG, Kansas Housing Resource Commission, 
HUD or any available programs to offset development costs. 2021 COMPLETE

Identify redevelopment properties for South Central Kansas Economic 
Development District (SCKEDD) development program. 2021 Ongoing
Develop applicable codes for the use of alternative construction 
methods such as tiny homes or container homes. 2022 COMPLETE
Focus on developing additional duplex properties or apartment 
properties for rentals. 2022 2023

UPDATES April 2024
Mennonite Housing continues to pursue a tax credit award from Kansas Housing Resource Corporation 
for a 24-unit development called Orchard Ridge. The development would be workforce housing. The 
current configuration would allow for an additional 24-units to be built if there was a market for the 
properties. The KHRC will announce awards in June 2024. If awarded the first units would be available in 
summer 2025.

The Land Bank sold 306 W Grand via sealed bid and the remaining buildable lot in the Willow Glen 
subdivision. Council also approved a rezoning at 501 S Main to convert the property to rental housing.  
Last summer another Willow Glen lot was sold for a single family home. 306 W Grand is being updated as 
a rental. 

Elite Container homes received the "AH" zoning for six lots on 3rd street. Their plan is to build 2 single 
family homes and 4 duplexes on those properties. Elite Container Homes will need to extend some 
utilities to the sites. Once that is complete they will begin construction. 

Offer a range of housing options that improve existing housing stock and add additional homes to meet 
community expansion

Understand the housing needs of the community and commercial viability of housing
Develop an average of 5 new housing units per year
Actively have 3 housing developers working with the community
Actively prevent blight or underuse of property

3 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Housing

UPDATES January 2024

UPDATES October 2023

UPDATES June 2023

Staff met with a developer that has a rural housing model that appears to fit the city of Hillsboro. As a 
test we are attempting to find 3-5 empty infill lots that could be used as a market test. If that would work 
out then we could talk about more homes.

The City sold one of its two buildable lots in Willow Glen to a couple interested in building a new home. 
That sale should close in September. When they begin building that will be the first new home since 
2017. 

WSU's PPMC has completed a Housing Needs Assessment, required for the city to access the Rural 
Housing Incentive District (RHID) program. The report is currently in the revision process and should be 
handed over to the city in the next two weeks. From there we can proceed with an RHID with the Old 
Town building if the developer is still interested.

The Land Bank approved an option agreement with Mennonite Housing for a potential workforce 
housing development on west Orchard Drive. Mennonite Housing will be submitting a tax credit 
application to the Kansas Housing Resource Commission for the development. As proposed the 
development would be 24 rental units (12 duplexes) owned and managed by Mennonite Housing. If 
approved construction could begin in late 2024.

Staff has reached out to SCKEDD on potentially remodeling the house at 306 W Grand. The property was 
donated to the Land Bank in 2023. The home is in bad shape, but could potentially be remodeled and 
sold through the SCKEDD program.

The City Council will review an application for the AH- Alternative Housing zoning overlay for a shipping 
container home on 3rd Street. The proposed home's plans were approved by the Planning Commission. 
If the zoning were approved by Council, then the home would start construction in early 2024.

Shipping container homes are on pause until the developer can provided the requested plan information 
for a Planning Commission public hearing. At this point there is no ETA.

The Housing Needs Assessment is completed with data that will allow the city to qualify for the RHID 
program. The owners of the 126 N Main building has expressed interest in using the tool for upper floor 
housing. 

Staff continue to work a developer interested in building on infill lots, however it has been difficult to 
identify infill lots for these projects. Staff continue to work with a developer from Oklahoma on a 
potential apartment complex. Staff have also re-engaged with Mennonite Housing from Wichita to 
discuss potential projects.

We are still working to develop an apartment complex project by the elementary school, but had issues 
communicating with the land owner. 

Shipping container houses had public hearing scheduled for July 2023, but the developers were unable to 
provide the needed plans to meet the requirements. There has been no further communication about 
the plans since the deadline. 

4 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Workforce

TIER 1 GOAL: WORKFORCE

OBJECTIVES

STRATEGY START DATE
COMPLETION 

DATE
Develop a "Key Customer" plan 2021 COMPLETE
Develop a CEO Roundtable that includes Tabor College, USD 
410, HCC and BCCC 2021 ONGOING
Develop a workforce awareness plan 2022 2022
Establish training collaborations to strengthen workforce 
development 2021 2023

Focus development strategies to promote entrepreneurship 2022 ONGOING
Develop specific training programs between USD 410 and 
industrial partners to meet workforce needs 2021 ONGOING

Investigate potential opportunities for apprenticeships or paid 
tuition programs that encourage employee training. 2022 2022
Research opportunities to recruit workforce from other groups 
such as immigrant populations. 2021 ONGOING

UPDATES April 2024

Develop a pipeline of educated talent to support current and future businesses.

Stronger collaborative relationships between educational providers
Meet the workforce needs of the community and county
Provide opportunities for community members to find employment

HMS/HS hosted an inaugural Building Bridges program in partnership with Workforce ONE and 
the City. The discussion featured many area businesses and students and parents. The intention 
of the event is to grow over multiple years. Many opportunities for job shadowing and 
internships should flow from the new partnerships with businesses. 

The YEC event was cancelled due to limited participation. The CKEC will continue to work 
toward building the event back up in the County. CKEC continues to develop opportunities for 
community and student engagement. The advisory board is planning on going through strategic 
planning in 2024 to establish goals for the center.

Page 5 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Workforce

UPDATES January 2024

UPDATES October 2023

UPDATES June 2023

Staff continue to work on possible workforce solutions, but have made little progress. Efforts 
continue to develop internship and apprenticeship programs in partnership with Tabor. 

There has been little movement on the trade school development. We have been rethinking 
and retooling our approach and plan on rebooting in the fall. The proposed Administrative 
Coordinator position will assist with the development of the trade school.

The City renewed its commitment to the CKEC in July. The CKEC will have a new dedicated 
director and will continue to build on the work that has been started in the previous year.

The CKEC continues to develop its programming. The new director has taken on coordinating 
the Youth Entrepreneurship Challenge for the county schools. The CKEC has developed an 
advisory board to help guide development. 

The CKEC hosted a side hustle challenge in November and will be hosting the YEC event in 
March.  CKEC in partnership with the Hillsboro and Marion E-Communities will be hosting  a 
Destination Creation Course in 2024. Additional programming is being developed. An advisory 
board for CKEC has been regularly meeting to help guide the direction of the center.

Staff had discussions with Kansas Workforce ONE on developing more programs for 
apprenticeships and intern opportunities. Staff connected Workforce ONE with USD 410 to help 
bring in additional assets. Conservations are ongoing on how the state's programs can work with 
local employers to engage students. 

Page 6 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Community Development

TIER 2 GOAL: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

OBJECTIVES
Grow the Hillsboro population by .05% per year
Complete the Community Plaza project and plan for future park and recreational facilities
Provide opportunity for all residents and businesses to have access to gigabyte internet speeds
Modernize City Planning documents to reflect current needs of the community
Adjust City Codes to promote better partnerships with businesses

STRATEGY START DATE
COMPLETION 

DATE
Implement a community marketing plan focused on increasing visitors 
and residents 2020 Ongoing
Complete phase 1 of the Community Plaza project by 2022, then 
remaining phases 2021 COMPLETE
Develop a plan for recreational facilities and park development 
including trails 2023 2023
Work with TCWireless to complete a gigabyte fiber to the premise 
project 2020 COMPLETE

Apply for three additional trail grants for identified trail expansion 2022 2026
Support efforts for a community garden 2021 Ongoing
Review and update the City's Comprehensive Plan, zoning code and 
subdivision regulations 2022 2023
Work with downtown businesses to improve regulations to support 
commerce 2022 Ongoing

UPDATES April 2024

The Community Garden has begun with the current 5th grade leading the efforts. There are six families 
that have split up work on the garden for the 2024 season. The city has offered around $1,500 in funding 
each year and help with the tilling. 

Make investments in growing the community, increase vitality and continue to sustain a high quality of 
life.

The splash pad will open on Memorial Day weekend. Staff will have discussions with a builder about 
options for the Phase 2 amphitheater. From their there will be more fundraising efforts to complete the 
project. 

The Rec Department has begun its capital improvement planning for this year and next few years. The 
city will apply for the KDOT Transportation Alternative grant to do the section of trail on Orchard Drive to 
connect to the new potential housing development. 

Page 7 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Community Development

UPDATES January 2024

UPDATES October 2023

UPDATES June 2023

The Larry Paine Memorial Splash Pad was opened for the season in late-May and dedicated on July 28. 
Phase 1 of the plaza is completed aside from some smaller projects. We have pivoted to looking at what 
Phase 2 should look like. The sitting wall will likely be installed yet this year if time allows.

Prof. Staci Janzen's Marketing and Social Media classes are going to be taking on the Golf Course and CVB 
social media pages this fall. We hope to have a dedicated intern come out of that process to boost and 
manage our marketing presence. 

The parks, recreational and trail system plan has been delayed until a replacement can be found for the 
Director position. 

The rotation of students and families has done a good job of managing the community garden over the 
summer. Its been a challenge but I think there are lessons learned that will improve it moving forward.

The splash pad concluded its 1st season on October 1. City crews have done the sitting wall for phase 2. 
Work has also started on designs for the amphitheater portion of the plaza.
A new rec director is on board and preparation for a new recreation and park plan is happening. A full 
planning process could start in 2024. 

Fundraising for the second phase of the Community Plaza will continue into 2024. Permeant signage for 
the Splash Park should be completed early 2024. The park will reopen in late May in coordination with 
the swimming pool. 

The Rec Department will begin its capital improvement planning in early 2024. The trail portion of the 
plan is completed, but the community facilities portion will need to be completed. Staff has submitted a 
proposal to the E-RAMP program that would completed the trail and sidewalk improvements as well as 
extending the walking path to the reservoir. 

The city joined the Flint Hills Regional Council in 2024. As part of that membership, the FHRC added 
Hillsboro to large EPA planning grant. A big portion of that planning will focus on downtown corridor 
development and address some of the comprehensive plan elements. The grant will likely be awarded in 
spring 2024.

Page 8 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Financial Stability

TIER 2 GOAL: FINANCIAL STABILITY

OBJECTIVES

STRATEGY START DATE
COMPLETION 

DATE
Allocate necessary funds to meet the General Fund 
requirement for the Fund Balance Policy. 2021 Ongoing
Complete a City-wide capital improvement plan and capital 
equipment plan 2021 COMPLETE
Allocate necessary funds to meet the Utility Fund 
requirements for the Fund Balance Policy. 2021 Ongoing
Develop a comprehensive rate and fee schedule for all City 
revenue streams 2020 2022
Work on regular utility rate adjustments to fully fund the 
capital improvement and equipment plan. 2022 Ongoing
Develop a plan for the local option sales tax once the FAC 
bonds are retired in 2023. 2024 Ongoing
Create a stabilization reserve funds for each utility to maintain 
financial stability during unforeseen events. 2022 Ongoing

UPDATES April 2024

UPDATES January 2024

Safeguard the City's financial well being with enhanced long-term planning & financial 
management tools

Manage and reduce long-term debt while balancing infrastructure needs
Meet the City's stated fund balance policy goals by 2026

Maintain reasonable income streams and reduce overall costs through operational changes

The Council approved the CIP in December 2023. The total plan is over $13 million and provides 
direction from 2023-2036 on projects and needed maintenance. 

The utility funds are projected to be near the fund balance policy targets by 2025. Regular rate 
assessments have helped keep pace with rising costs. Completing the KDHE PILOT project should 
ultimately reduce operational costs but it is still to be determined. 

The comprehensive fee schedule remains stalled. It will be made a priority in the first half of 
2024. 

Road projects for Adams, Lincoln, and Wilson streets will address the top three road areas in the 
CIP adopted in 2023. The area for road replacement is on Cedar and Date streets.

The comprehensive fee schedule is will be presented to the Council in the next few months. The 
review process has taken far longer than was anticipated. 

Page 9 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Financial Stability

UPDATES October 2023

UPDATES June 2023

The CIP report from EBH has been provided. We are still tweaking and adding some internal 
items. The master parks, recreation and trails plan has been delayed due to staffing changes. 

The CIP for infrastructure is completed. Staff will bring that forward for council approval in 2023. 
The capital equipment plan will require more time to complete, but will be ready in the first half 
of 2024.

The electric fund is good shape compared to its position from last year. The water fund and 
sewer fund will likely need rate adjustments to keep up with increased costs. Additional ways to 
reduce costs are constantly being evaluated.

The comprehensive fee schedule should be completed by the end of 2023 for adoption by the 
Council. 

The electric fund's health has improved in 2023 with the rate adjustment. According to the June 
dashboard the fund is up to 40 days cash on hand. With the end of the winter storm Uri 
surcharge in summer, the KPP bill should begin to be lower moving forward.

The comprehensive fee schedule has stalled out in our review process due to finding new fees 
that need to be included and some additional decisions that need to made. We hope to move 
that forward in 2023.

Page 10 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Public Safety

TIER 2 GOAL: PUBLIC SAFETY
Provide quality facilities for public safety organizations serving the community
OBJECTIVES
Secure an ideal location Marion County EMS for long-term service 
Improve efficiency by locating HFD equipment in one location
Get HPD out of the dilapidated AMPI building.

STRATEGY START DATE
COMPLETION 

DATE
Work with Marion County EMS on co-locating an EMS facility with 
Hillsboro emergency services 2021 COMPLETE
Develop a concept and plans for new public safety building 2021 COMPLETE

Apply for funding including any grant or community facility programs to 
complete the public safety building 2022 2024
Complete new public safety building 2023 2024

UPDATES April 2024

UPDATES January 2024

UPDATES October 2023

UPDATES June 2023

The fire station committee has engaged a new architect, Sheldon Architects, and Nelson-Fowles to look 
at options utilizing a pre-engineered steel building as the station shell. We have also submitted an 
appropriations request through Rep. Jake LaTurner's office for Federal funding of the project. The status 
of the request is subject to congressional action.

Staff spoke with Casey's General Store about the potential issues with a "No Parking" zone around the 
station and their store. We have offered to provide a potential swap of city held property near US-56 in 
exchange for their current store property. The station's location would significantly reduce parking and 
egress to their current building. Having a new station and new, larger Casey's would be a double win for 
the community. 

A basic fire station plan has been worked by architects and the fire station committee. The estimated 
cost exceed $7 million without any changed to the design or reductions in amenities. The leadership 
group has looked at opportunities to reduce the cost to $5 million. A delegation of state and federal 
officials toured the facility in December 2023 and offered support. Staff is exploring potential 
opportunities to fund a fire station project. The original build timeline of 2024 will likely need to stretch 
into 2025. 

The fire station building committee will meet again in October to review the current designs. The KDHE 
Brownfields program is completing a Phase 2 environmental on the property. Completing that study may 
lead to additional EPA funding for removal of parts of the AMPI building. 

Revisions on the fire station designs has been made by the fire command staff and the WDM architects. 
We are now at a point for the fire station building committee to meet again. The design may need to be 
trimmed back based on the size at this point, but that will part of the process.  Construction would be 
pending a funding source.

Page 11 of 11



City Administrator’s Report 
April 16, 2024 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Branding Proposal:  I received a proposal from FutureGen Digital Agency to redesign the city’s logo and 
put together a branding guide. FutureGen is a company co-owned by my former intern Alejandro 
Honrado Salas and two other partners. They started the business while students at Tabor and have 
worked with the CKEC on helping build the business. They have completed similar branding for other 
companies, primarily in Latin American and South America. The Elgin Hotel in Marion is also a client. 
Their proposal is inexpensive at $750 but I wasn’t sure if the council would be interested in a logo 
redesign. If we decided to pursue it, I would suggest the CVB take the lead role in development.   

Casey’s Conversation: I had a conversation and correspondence with Casey’s real estate representative 
covering this territory. When the new fire station is built, the entire length of 3rd Street will be marked as 
“No Parking” on both sides. Since Casey’s regularly uses street parking, the change will dramatically 
impact their operations. I have proposed a potential real estate swap to trade Casey’s property owned 
by the city by Midway Motors or in Hillsboro Heights for their current location with the tanks removed. 
Its not clear what their gameplan or timeline would be, but we have made them aware of what is 
happening. 

Grant Updates:  Callie Arnold, the new Assistant to the City Administrator, has been hard at work 
developing a grant proposal for street light upgrade. That grant is 100% funded and would replace 
around 50 streetlights, though we may look at a full change out which is closer to 300 streetlights. Our 
SEED grant project to replace Dale’s Supermarket floor is moving forward; they plan on starting this 
week. The HEAL grant for 126 N Main is progressing and they should soon clear the final hurdle on their 
CDBG-CR. The daycare project is going to receive up to $50,000 from KDHE Brownfields to assist with 
asbestos tile removal.  

Request for AMI Proposition Study: We’ve requested a proposal from Senus, our metering company, to 
take our current AMR metering system to an AMI system. AMR requires us to drive around and collect 
data, whereas the AMI is a fixed tower system that allows us to read all the meters and turn services 
on/off from the office. KPP provided the initial funds to replace the meters which are close to installed. 
The meter technology allows the current meters to be read by either AMR or AMI.  

KPP Energy Bill: Attached is the KPP Energy bill for March. There was an Energy Cost Adjustment of 
$26,461.91 meaning that the cost of energy was higher than originally projected for the month. 
Compared to March of last year, the cost of energy was higher, and our consumption was slightly lower.  

Health Insurance Savings Report: Attached is the Health Insurance savings report for March. Compared 
to a fully funded BCBS plan, the city saved $7,812.95 for the month, $46,709.13 for the plan year that 
ends in June. BCBS has already developed the renewal for this year’s policy, but we have not yet seen 
the data. Danielle and I also talked with another third party administrator about potentially shifting our 
plan management to them. They claim to have lower fees, so we will get a proposal from them to 
consider. 

City Hall Vestibule: The major City Hall improvement project for this year is complete. We added a 
second set of glass doors on the south entrance. We were constantly having issues with wind when that 
door was opened as well as heating/cooling lose. The new vestibule will correct those issues.  

 



PLEASE NOTE NEW 
REMITTANCE ADDRESS

PLEASE REMIT TO:
KANSAS POWER POOL

DEPT 3423
P.O. BOX 123423

DALLAS, TX 75312-3423
City of

P.O. Box 125 Mar-24 4/12/2024
4/22/2024

Peak kW Date Hour Ending

3,112 3/26/2024 12:00

kW/kWh Rate $ Amount

3,112 kW $8.52 $26,514.24 $0.01573
3,112 kW $2.58 $8,028.96 $0.00476

RICE Upgrade 3,112 kW $0.00 $0.00 $0.00000
3,112 kW

0 kW
3,112 kW $9.40 $29,252.80 $0.01736

1,624,700 kWh
60,772 kWh

0 kWh
0 kWh
0 kWh

1,685,472 kWh $0.02283 $38,479.33 $0.02283

1,685,472 kWh $0.01570000 $26,461.91 $0.01570
1,685,472 kWh $0.00000000 $0.00 $0.00000

$128,737.24 $0.07638
$0.00
$0.00

$469.71
$1,858.99

 
$0.03853000

$131,065.94

  
  

 

Service Month: Billing Date:  
Account # 380 Due Date:

 

Ave Cost per 
kWh

Demand Charges
Transmission

Administrative

Energy Cost Adjustment

TOTAL DEMAND AND ENERGY CHARGE

Delivered Capacity
Capacity Adjustment

Capacity Demand

Energy Charges
Metered Energy

Losses

0

 
 
 

Hillsboro
Attn: City Clerk

Hillsboro, KS  67063

Past Due / (Credit)
Correction for Prior Month Billing
Distribution Facility Charge
AMI Project Repay

System average cost of energy in $/kWh

TOTAL BILLING THIS PERIOD

Generation
Unsch Generation

Energy Adjustment
Energy 



Employee Tier
# of 

Employees

Illustrative 

Rates

Total 

Illustrative 

Rates

Umbrella 

Policy Rates

Total 

Umbrella 

Policy Rates

TPA Admin 

Fee

Monthly 

Medical 

Claims Paid

Monthly 

Rx Claims 

Paid

Risk 

Management 

Fee

Gross Savings 

of Freedom 

Choice

Net Savings 

of Freedom 

Choice

Single 8 840.41$      6,723.28$    559.65$      4,477.20$    416.00$      

Employee/Spouse 7 1,680.82$  11,765.74$  1,119.30$  7,835.10$    364.00$      

Employee/Child 4 1,470.71$  5,882.84$    979.38$      3,917.52$    208.00$      

Family 6 2,101.02$  12,606.12$  1,399.12$  8,394.72$    312.00$      

25 36,977.98$  24,624.54$  1,300.00$  1,815.46$  556.93$  868.11$       8,681.05$    7,812.95$  

July, 2023 through June, 2024

City of Hillsboro

911280

Monthly Claims Analysis for FreedomChoice

March, 2024

FreedomChoice
Group Health Plan

Freedom  Claims Management, Inc

P.O. Box 1365

Great Bend, KS  67530

620-792-9151 - Telephone

620-792-3389 - Fax



# of 

Employees

Total 

Illustrative 

Rates

Total Umbrella 

Policy Rates

TPA Admin 

Fee

Monthly Medical 

Claims Paid

Monthly Rx 

Claims Paid

Risk 

Management 

Fee*

Gross Savings 

of Freedom 

Choice

Net Savings of 

Freedom 

Choice
July-23 25 34,666.87$    23,085.52$    1,300.00$    413.71$            1,003.75$     886.39$        8,863.89$     7,977.50$      

August-23 24 34,666.87$    23,085.52$    1,248.00$    3,232.35$         4,067.91$     303.31$        3,033.09$     2,729.78$      

September-23 24 35,087.07$    23,365.34$    1,248.00$    2,669.37$         2,654.40$     515.00$        5,149.96$     4,634.96$      

October-23 23 33,826.46$    22,525.87$    1,196.00$    1,502.73$         2,792.90$     580.90$        5,808.96$     5,228.06$      

November-23 24 35,717.37$    23,785.07$    1,248.00$    13,178.12$       2,152.61$     (464.64)$       (4,646.43)$    (4,181.79)$     

December-23 25 36,977.98$    24,624.54$    1,300.00$    1,014.85$         558.05$         948.05$        9,480.54$     8,532.49$      

January-24 25 36,977.98$    24,624.54$    1,300.00$    3,066.67$         581.39$         740.54$        7,405.38$     6,664.84$      

February-24 25 36,977.98$    24,624.54$    1,300.00$    2,329.91$         600.94$         812.26$        8,122.59$     7,310.33$      

March-24 25 36,977.98$    24,624.54$    1,300.00$    1,815.46$         556.93$         868.11$        8,681.05$     7,812.95$      

April-23 0 -$                 -$                 -$              -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$                

May-23 0 -$                 -$                 -$              -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$                

June-23 0 -$                 -$                 -$              -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$                

321,876.56$  214,345.48$  11,440.00$  29,223.17$       14,968.88$   5,189.90$     51,899.03$   46,709.13$    

Group Health Plan

City of Hillsboro

911280

Monthly Claims Analysis for Freedom Choice

July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024

FreedomChoice

*Negative amounts in this column are not billed as such. Negative amounts will be billed as $0 Risk Management Fee.

Freedom  Claims Management, Inc

P.O. Box 1365 

Great Bend, KS  67530

620-792-9151 - Telephone

620-792-3389 - Fax


	Agenda 04.16.24.pdf
	2024.04.16 Vouchers for Approval $139,734.52 SCANNED
	2024.04.02 Council Minutes for Approval
	2024.04.16 Flood Plain Maps
	2024.04.16 Flood Plain Maps.pdf
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	2024.03.22 Notice of Public Hearing.pdf
	Ord 1390 Hillsboro Approved.pdf

	2024.04.16 Electric Policies
	2024.04.16 Electric Policies.pdf
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	2024.04.16 Policy 102 Lightning Arresters
	2024.04.16 Policy 103 Vegetation Management
	2024.04.16 Policy 104 Wildlife Preservation

	2024.04.16 Q1 Strategic Plan Update
	Childcare
	Housing
	Workforce
	Community Development
	Financial Stability
	Public Safety

	Administrators Report 04.16.24
	Administrators Report 04.16.24.pdf
	Hillsboro KPP March Billing 2024 10.pdf
	911280_City of Hillsboro_Savings Report 032024 (002).pdf




